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It’s me; my Lord!



Inam R Sehri

• Born in Lyallpur (Pakistan) in April 1948

• First Degree from Government College Lyallpur (1969)

• Studied at Government College Lahore & got first Master’s Degree from Punjab University Lahore (1971);

• Attachment with AJK Education Service (1973-1976)

• Central Superior Services (CSS) Exam passed (batch 1975)

• Civil Service Academy Lahore (joined 1976)

• National Police Academy Islamabad (joined 1977)

• LLB from BUZ University Multan (1981)

• Master’s Degree from Exeter University of UK (1990)

• Regular Police Service: District Admin, Police College, National Police Academy, the Intelligence Bureau (IB), Federal Investigation Agency (FIA) [1977-1998] then migrated to the UK permanently.

A part-script copied from the earlier volumes:

Just spent a normal routine life; with hundreds of mentionable memoirs allegedly of bravery & glamour as every uniformed officer keeps, some times to smile at and next moment to repent upon but taking it just normal except one or two spills.

During my tenure at IB HQ Islamabad I got chance to peep into the elite civil and military leadership of Pakistan [then] existing in governmental dossiers and database.

During my stay at FIA I was assigned to conduct special enquiries & investigations into some acutely sensitive matters like Motorway Scandal, sudden expansion and build-up of Sharif family’s industrial empire, Sharif’s accounts in foreign countries; Alleged Financial Corruptions in Pakistan’s Embassies in Far-Eastern Countries; Shahnawaz Bhutto’s murder in Cannes (France); Land Scandals of CDA’s Estate Directorate; Ittefaq Foundry’s ‘custom duty on scrap’ scam, Hudaibya Engineering & Hudaibya Paper Mills enquiries, Bhindara’s Murree Brewery and tens more cases like that.

[Through these words I want to keep it on record that during the course of the above mentioned, (and also which cannot be mentioned due to space limits) investigations or enquiries, the then Prime Minister Benazir Bhutto, or [late] Gen Naseerullah Babar the then Federal Interior Minister, had never ever issued direct instructions or implicit directions or wished me to distort facts or to go malafide for orchestrating a political edge or other intangible gains or hidden benefits.]

Hats off to both of them!

Some top bureaucrats like Kh Zaheer, Afzal Kahoot and Saeed Mehdi twisted my arms in the name of Sharif’s anger firstly sent me home then tried to imprison me – only the INTERPOL’s investigations into my affairs could rescue me.

In Ingall Hall of the Pakistan Military Academy [PMA], it is carved:

“It is not what happens to you that matters but how you behave while it is happening”.

I should feel proud that veracity and truthfulness of none of my enquiry or investigation could be challenged or proved false in NAB or Special Courts; yes, most of them were used to avail political compromises by Gen Musharraf’s government.

That’s enough, my dear countrymen.

 



Israelmore Ayivor once said:

“One of the most deadly causes of destruction of divine destinies is when a leader is failing, but he or she does not know it. Ignorance about your role is a death plot against people’s successes.”
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11TH HUMBLE SUBMISSION

No formal words of welcome; simply see a script about Pakistan portrayed by a famous writer ‘THE SAINT’ [Simon Templar; a geo-strategist based in Brussels] in the ‘vision 21’ dated 12th July 2017 – placed below verbatim:

“Nothing describes the misrule of two successive, so called democratically elected governments [PPP & PMLN] in the unstable, underdeveloped 200 million strong South Asian state of Pakistan.

How thieves, plunderers and freebooters came to rule this nuclear armed state is a sad tale in itself.

When Gen Musharraf reached his limits of flexibility, it was decided by the US and British to force him bring back the two tainted, condemned political leaders in exile and to wash away all their sins under a dubious order in the name of National Reconciliation Ordinance [NRO].

{The National Reconciliation Ordinance [NRO 2007] was a controversial ordinance issued by the former President of Pakistan, General Pervez Musharraf, on 5th October 2007 - Google.}

‘The US Ambassador compelled Gen Musharraf to resign and after the mysterious, unsolved murder of Benazir Bhutto, her thuggish husband, the upstart, criminal uneducated, corrupt and much reviled Asif Zardari came to power.

The deal with the West was that we bring you [Zardari] back, wash away your past sins and you squeeze the [Pak] Army.’

The game began and new Chief Kayani turned a blind eye, as he was busy improving his impoverished families financial condition. So well did this team work that Gen Kayani got an unprecedented 3 year second term, Zardari became a billionaire, Kayani from rags to millionaire and the country went to the dogs.

The US with its two cops in place, in charge of the Presidency and Pak-military, violated Pakistani sovereignty and physical boundaries at will, using drones, choppers, covert assassin’s and whatever they close [including the Taliban].

As per the unholy charter of plutocracy, Sharif kept silent during Zardari’s plunder and he returned the favour after Sharif took over in [June] 2013.

Simple math, over-invoice $ 50 billion of Chinese funded projects - whether needed or not - by ten percent, sign sovereign guarantees, leave future generations to pay off horrifying debts and pocket 5% off the top!

Walk away with a cool $ 2.5 billion dollars. Astonishingly simple as it is audacious.

Where Zardari was a street thug, looting millions, forcing neighbours to sell their properties on the cheap, the plunderers from Punjab, whose father made pots and cooking utensils with his bare hands are now certified dollar billionaires; thanks to massive bank defaults, and international cuts commissions and kickbacks.

Wow! Wonderful, just one mistake…Sharif, egged on by vicious anti military Advisers like Junior Minister for Foreign Affairs Syed Tarik Fatami, kept on targeting the by now restive and powerful Pakistan military [especially its top brass].

The leakage of information pertaining to thousands of offshore companies incorporated in Panama signalled the end for the strangely absent Sharif regime.

Perhaps the most corrupt and worse administered government in the history of Pakistan…..certainly the most hypocritical - destroying the civil service structure, promoting nepotism, turning state servants especially in the Punjab into glorified pimps and facilitators.

One poor married lady was famously peddled by her husband out to Sharif, then his younger brother and in turn was rewarded with top administrative positions for his immoral shamelessness.

Functioning without statutory mandated positions such as State Ombudsman, National Tax Collector, Head of the Audit Service and even without the Governor of the State Bank.

Burgeoning debt, increasingly hostile borders, declining exports, a dysfunctional government, falling stock market and collapsing currency could not shake Sharif out of his stupor.

On the ropes, with his family corruption the main story in every paper, every channel and on social media, he chose to plod on shamelessly, trying one corrupt lawyer after another in a futile attempt to cover his tracks [of massive corruption].

Described as a Sicilian mafioso by the worthy judges of the top constitutional court, Sharif scraped the bottom of the barrel, hiring the immoral Raja Salman Akram, known to have defended Zardari’s drug dealing Prime Minister, all to no avail.

Functioning without a Foreign minister for four years, and appointing idiots as top envoys, the joke is on Sharif as he is now left with no friends to bail him out as before.

His Saudi patrons distanced themselves from their pet poodle after Sharif was unable to prevail upon his military that very sensibly refused to go and fight alongside Saudi troops in Yemen.

Indians and Americans have realised he cannot dominate his military and the Turks and Chinese know him and his tribe as crooked, slimy money grabbers.

Despite holding office for years, Sharif has paid no attention to healthcare, education, rule of law or job creation, focusing purely on shady, unnecessary projects providing easy kickbacks.

Now decades of money laundering, defaulted bank loans and millions in off shore accounts and overseas properties stand to be exposed for what they are, the loot and plunder from 190 million poor uneducated helpless souls who are forced to sell or kill their children due to lack of justice, poverty and a gloomy future.

The question is how will things unfold? Will the shameless, immoral, hypocritical kleptocrats escape yet again to lick their wounds and enjoy their boots abroad or shall they deservedly meet the fate of another erstwhile billionaire, the late unlamented Colonel Qaddafi who died bloodied and screaming in the street as his vengeful subjects beat him to death?”

In fact the above narration is the true reflection of us – a mirror for Pakistan as country. Pakistani politicians very well know about the values of ISLAM and of DEMOCRACY because nearly all of the leadership keep their businesses and real estates in Saudi Arabia and Dubai - and keep their families in England and America for lavish living and education [and huge businesses].

BUT, the rascals have their own definitions of religion & democracy.

The rogue Pakistani politicians keep knowledge what they have to do and what can they do for their poor populace & voters but they CORRECTLY loot them instead because the people are foolish enough to follow them blindly [knowingly how much corrupt they are]; they don’t have minds; those who keep minds have no courage; those who keep mind and courage both have no initiative drive.

Inside Pakistan, there is no nation – only living crowds; mostly thoroughly CORRUPT – but some less CORRUPT.

Inam R Sehri

Manchester UK

12th February 2018


 

 

 

 

Henry Kissinger once said:


“Corrupt politicians make the other ten percent look bad.” 

“….he who doesn’t understand history is doomed to repeat it. And when it’s repeated, the stakes are doubled.”


	

Scenario 201

…WHO PLUNDERED THE MOST:

But hold on – rogue politicians pictured before - from the two major political parties [PMLN & PPP] of Pakistan were not the only entities who plundered Pakistan but inept, coward and some corrupt Judges on superior & higher courts, very few top Generals and the most crown Bureaucrats were equally responsible for the colossal loss.

Take the Pakistan’s apex judiciary - A bitter reality first:

All courts make mistakes; in Pakistan and elsewhere in the whole world. Abu’al Kalam Azad had once given a historical statement before a court in Calcutta [India] that:

“History stands witness that whenever the powerful rulers wanted to suppress the ‘independent, self determining or truthful’ public voices, they used their courts as ‘the most effective’ weapons.”

Every court has powers and those can be used either way; for justice and gross injustice both. For rightful governments, the courts were the source of extending help to the deserved and oppressed ones; but the same courts had exerted to take revenge and score balancing jobs for bad rulers – civil & military both.

Recall the famous saying: Most of the historical injustices have been done either in battle fields or in the courts.

Since the early ages of Egyptian and Roman empires, the sentiments of judges have been the deciding factors; not the issues nor the facts of law. There is long list of persons which had been subjected to the injustices of the honourable courts of the past; history is still cursing those moments.

Prophet Jesus Christ was once made to stand with thieves before the stranger courts.

• Socrates was the most truthful man of his era but a court order made him to drink poison.

• Galileo of Florence had also gone through wrath of his time’s court because he had denied shelving his knowledge and observations; then it was a crime to talk nature in open.

• Premier Z A Bhutto was hanged on the orders of some rascal judges because a military General wanted to rule Pakistan for ever [historians also blame Henry Kissinger on nuclear issue].

In short, the dock in a court room is the most sacred place where the criminals, alleged culprits and the innocent angles stand alike and graded equal; their fate always depended on [self] interpretation of law and mood of the judges both; analyse the history in perspective.

JUDGES IN HISTORY’s MIRROR:

Let us be Proud of Some Judges: In summer 2010, during challenge to the 18th Constitutional Amendment, one Shahid Orakzai, while arguing before Supreme Court’s 17 members bench raised the Holy Quran in one hand, and the Constitution of Pakistan in the other. He theatrically declared that the time had come for the apex court to pick one out of these two books to discard the other. Suddenly, Orakzai let go off the Constitution book, which fell to the floor with an exaggerated thump.

Everyone remained silent – all the honourable judges and the members of the legal fraternity.

But then, something incredible happened: Justice Mian Saqib Nisar [then one of the junior judges at the bench], thundered from his seat - “How dare you throw the Constitution of Pakistan onto the floor, in the premises of Court Room No.1!” Justice Nisar proceeded to issue a contempt notice to Orakzai, who later apologized and was excused by the then Chief Justice Iftikhar M Chaudhary.

Supreme Court vs Politicians: BUT what can nationalist Pakistanis expect from the judges raised from political fishpond of stagnant and stinking waters – see a historical event:

The judgment of the famous ‘Judges Case’ was to be announced on 20th March 1996 by the then Chief Justice of Pakistan Sajjad Ali Shah. A day earlier, on 19th March, Benazir Bhutto’s government announced the appointment of twenty judges to Lahore High Court and seven to Sindh High Court.

Acting Chief Justices of both courts; Justice Irshad Hasan Khan of LHC and Justice Abdul Hafeez Memon of Sindh Court administered oaths to the new judges without even informing their CJP. Both ACJs were appointees of Benazir Bhutto and they returned the favour by doing so while in the Supreme Court the draft of judgment in ‘Judges Case’ was being finalized.

In Pakistan, indoor intrigues prevailed [even more] in higher judiciary in all times.

Going back in December 1997’s battle between Chief Justice Sajjad Ali Shah and the PM Nawaz Sharif, President Farooq Leghari had become the casualty and had to resign. New president had to be elected and sworn in within thirty days. Justice Mukhtar A Junejo was serving as acting Chief Election Commissioner [CEC] and in this capacity was also returning officer for the election of President of Pakistan scheduled for 31st December 1997. PM Nawaz Sharif’s candidate was ‘Brief Case Fame’ judge Rafiq Tarar.

On 18th December 1997, Justice Juenjo entertained a petition filed by PPP’s former minister Aftab S Mirani and rejected the nomination papers of his former colleague Justice [rtd] Rafiq Tarar stating that Tarar’s previous derogatory remarks about judiciary made him ineligible to be elected to the parliament and henceforth he didn’t qualify to be elected as president of the country.

An appeal was filed against the rejection at Lahore High Court where CJ Rashid Aziz Khan [later shunted out disgracefully in Justice Qayyum’s AUDIO TAPE Scandal] ‘was conveyed message’ not to sit on the bench. The next crony judges’ bench of Lahore High Court suspended CEC’s order and allowed Rafiq Tarar to contest election.

On 28th December 1997; just after 10 days of his decision Justice Junejo was booted out from the CEC office and the acting President appointed Justice Abdul Qadeer Chaudhry as the permanent CEC.

In 1997, Pakistan surely wrote some new chapters in judicial history. A permanent President [Farooq Leghari] appointed an acting CEC but when it became inconvenient an Acting President [Wasim Sajjad] appointed a permanent CEC – what else expected from corrupt leadership.

MPs JAILED IN UK for Minor Frauds: Nowhere in the world, the judges are supposed to shout at but in Pakistan it has been a normal practice for judges hoping that it would bring headlines for leading newspapers amidst waves of ‘strong judiciary syndrome’. In all societies, the judges do not but their decisions speak – while in Pakistan the judges speak loud but their decisions ‘thuss’.

In developed democracies the things go different. In UK, during the corresponding three years the courts dealt numerous cases of corruption or public importance. Here the wrong doers got punishments irrespective of their origin or party affiliation. More MPs and less police officers were sent behind the bars.

Five MPs and one Lord were sentenced for claiming benefits which were not justified for their ranks. The financial involvement in each individual case was less than twelve thousand pounds but all they got jails; no shouting in courts, no media glamour for judges. The people even do not know the names of judges who wrote those decisions in routine.

Referring to the UK’s CHANNEL 4 dated 4th February 2013;

Since decades UK politicians have been facing jail time for scandals while they were supposed to be acting as public representatives. Liberal Party MP Jabez Balfour [1843 – 1916; British Liberal Party politician; was Member of Parliament for Tamworth from 1880 to 1885, and for Burnley from 1889 to 1893] was locked up for property fraud at the turn of the last century.

More recently, the MPs Expenses Scandal saw a large number of politicians jailed; in the aftermath of the scandal four MPs and two peers were sent to prison for fiddling expenses.

• Ex-Labour MP David Chaytor was jailed for 18 months for fraudulently claiming more than £20,000 in expenses.

• Jim Devine was jailed for 16 months for claiming more than £8,000 ONLY in his expenses.

• Ex-environment minister Elliot Morley was sent to Ford open prison for fiddling to the tune of £30,000.

• Eric Illsley was released after just four months of a year-long sentence and claimed he was a ‘scapegoat’.

• MP Margaret Moran was spared prison and given a supervision order instead.

• Lord Taylor of Warwick was sent down for 12 months after claiming more than £11,000 from the taxpayer’s money. He was joined by peer Lord Hanningfield who said he ‘went through hell’ before he was jailed over his expenses; both members repaid back expenses they had claimed illegally.

In one scandal, an MP elected to parliament in 2010 was four times more likely to be jailed than the average member of the public. Under UK’s Representation of the People Act any MP detained in the UK for more than a year stands disqualified from membership of the House of Commons and his / her seat would be announced as vacant.

Chris Huhne faced the prospect of a jail sentence; if imprisoned he was sure of loosing his seat – however, earlier that day he resigned stating “the only proper course of action is now for me to resign my Eastleigh seat in parliament, which I will do now”.

But Chris Huhne was not the first serving politician to end up in trouble with the law. A number of MPs of Sinn Fein [left-wing Irish republican political party] had spent times in prison for IRA activity before being elected, including Northern Ireland Deputy First Minister Martin McGuinness. Similarly a number of Unionist MPs have spent time in prison – but NOT on charges of corruption.

UK’s LORD Jailed for Perjury: In 2001, a Conservative peer and millionaire novelist Lord Archer was jailed for perjury and perverting the course of justice, for lying during a libel case against the Daily Star, ending his political career.

Tory MP and former cabinet minister, Jonathan Aitken, was convicted of perjury and served a seven month sentence in 1999. On release he became an outspoken advocate of prison reform and contributeed to prison newspaper Inside Time.

[Need not to compare the above cases with the perjury case of Maryam Safdar & Hussain Nawaz during the Panama Case hearing before the Supreme Court of Pakistan during June 2017.

The SC bench ignored the Fake Font scandal, side-lined the issue AND, FOR THEIR COWARDICE, THE JUDGES WERE BEATEN INVARIABLY EACH DAY IN OPEN JALSAs BY HER – till today.]

Huhne could also face being stripped of his Privy Council membership, which allowed him to use the title “Right Honourable.” Jonathan Aitken voluntarily gave up his membership.

The most bizarre Westminster jailing involved Labour minister John Stonehouse, who faked his own death in 1974; he was arrested by police in Copenhagen who suspected he was Lord Lucan. On his return he endured a 68-day trial for 21 charges of fraud, theft, forgery, conspiracy to defraud, causing a false police investigation and wasting police time.

None of the imprisoned MPs could return to politics.

Similar happened with media lords on 2011’s famous ‘hacking scandal’ case in which an empire of 179 years old newspaper ‘NEWS OF THE WORLD’ had to shut down their circulation. The paper’s chief had to face interrogations; careers of many ended up in jail, press closed and hang over continued to haunt many.

PARLIAMENT & JUDICIARY IMPOTENT:

Most important – in Pakistan, the state functionaries, print and electronic media, the TV anchors and analysts always seen jumping with festivity while quoting the figures of raids on dens, arrests of culprits, seizure of piles of arms / drugs and taking custodial remands – but never quoted figures that how many of them were hanged, sentenced, fined or sent to jails. Figures would be shameful; not a single punishment by any civilian court – hats off to procedural gimmicks in Pakistani courts.

Judges and courts are blamed – never the parliamentarians and champions of democracy. With the given set of 170 years old laws and procedures what better one can expect from court-rooms. The whole nation is made to ‘admire the Military Courts’ because Majboori hai [no alternative available].

Neither Parliament nor the Supreme Court ever bothered to ponder that if the justice is administered through Military Court procedures in a better way AND the people approve & admire it – then WHY NOT GIVING THAT PROCEDURE CODE TO SELECTED CIVILIAN JUDGES TOO.

Since early 2008; there have been discussions on all media sectors that whether the Military Courts should prevail in civil democracy or not. Once the Parliament passed an alteration in the constitution [21st amendment in 2014] that: ‘…the military courts will be working in Karachi [or elsewhere] – but only for TWO years and with the approval of the provincial government’.

On 21st March 2017; the National Assembly approved the 28th amendment to Constitution of Pakistan paving the way for the extension of military courts. Law Minister Zahid Hamid had presented the Pakistan Army Act Amendment Bill 2017 in the Assembly for approval where 253 members voted in favour of the motion while four opposed the motion thereby showing two-third majority.

On 28th March 2017; Pakistan’s Senate approved the Twenty Eighth Amendment Bill 2017, for revival of the military courts for yet another two years. All the parties, except the government’s ally one-member party [Achakzai’s] Pakistan Milli-Awami Party [PkMAP] opposed the bill. Maulana Fazlur Rehman’s JUI[F], opted to abstain from voting.

The 28th Amendment Bill 2017 was tabled by Law Minister Zahid Hamid. Taking part in the discussion, Sardar Azam Khan Musakhel opposed the bill and said that by extending military courts, democratic parties were empowering dictatorship in the country. Senator Sitara Ayaz held that Khyber-PK was the worst hit by terrorism and that’s why her party was going to support this bill to end the scourge from the country; every one hailed her.

For constitutional amendment two-third-majority was needed – which was easily afforded. Open brawls amongst the federal and Sindh governments were often seen for Military Courts’ continuity but the whole nation, intelligentsia and the legislators were not able to understand that:

….why the parliament did not opt to pass a law or amend court procedures to adopt the same ‘Military Court’s Manual by the selective civil courts in districts and provinces under civilian & judicial hierarchy.

For making such new adoption, they needed only a simple majority in the Parliament – and the call for Military courts would have been abandoned for all times to come.

Alas! The successive civilian corrupt governments in Pakistan, running family business - governance in the name of democracy, did not have acumen and courage to formulate and make out laws & legal procedures required for 21st century’s changing needs.

In historical notes, the law students feel honour to study about Marshall Court of America. [The Marshall Court refers to the Supreme Court of the United States from 1801 to 1835, when John Marshall served as the fourth Chief Justice there.]

CJ John Marshall made the American Supreme Court ‘a driving force’ for change. CJ Marshall employed the law as a means to attain the political and economic ends that the people favoured. The judge used his power to mould the law in accordance with the needs of the American people. Marshall moulded his decisions to accord with the “necessities of the time”. For Marshall, the law in practice like the constitution was a tool to serve the needs of the nation.

Will some chief judge in Pakistan rise to do the same job [as the parliament and superior judiciary are blatantly impotent].

Pakistan’s 160 years old laws of Evidence [though amended in 1985 but only to the extent of words – not spirit], PPC and CrPC etc demand that ‘….preferably there should be an INDEPENDENT eye witness’ to come forward. In the whole 70 years history of Pakistan the judges might have found one in million cases…

BUT why crime-scene photos, media snaps and pictures showing the criminals’ faces while performing crime, videos taken by independent people and sources, live TV clippings from the crime spots, audio tape of recognised suspects, JIT reports, non-aligned informer’s statements – are ALL DISCARDED.

Why for the want of ‘independent eye witnesses mostly’ the coward judges are allowed to acquit killers and suicide bombers HONOURABLY - rest of the story everyone understands.

This dreadful, horrible and repulsive scenario should be CHANGED now.

Let the JUDGE understand the file, facts, docs, media material and reports what are placed before him. Let him apply his own mind…. Let him do about what he is convinced…. Let him frame his own EVIDENCE ACT - only to WRITE DOWN the reasons what he believed to reach a just decision – as the JIT and the Panama Case judges recently demonstrated.

PRIME STEP: BRING the GOD fearing and honest JUDGES UP … then believe them… trust them…..there will be no need of Marshall-Courts; you’ll not cry anymore.

Gen Ziaul Haq’s Legacy: Now little glimpses from Generals’ empire: editorial note in a leading newspaper dated 6th July 2017 is referred for Gen Ziaul Haq Legacy wherein the military coup against the government of Zulfikar Ali Bhutto dated 5th July 1977 remained one of the darkest days in Pakistan’s history. Through that un-wanted and cogently un-warranted military action, the country and its people were subjected to de-track their progressive path and that left terrible scars of distortion and ugly twists on the face of state and its inhabitants.

Gen Ziaul haq was aided less by circumstance and more by outside powers. Soviet aggression in Afghanistan and America’s one-time enthusiasm for Islamist jihadis to help wage a proxy war against the communist empire – were enough to develop a culture of narco-money, Kalashnikov, sectarian divides, hypocrisy and corruption in Pakistan. Still the whole nation is suffering from the said epidemics.

The military ruler’s self extended tenure coupled with adversaries of two superpowers allowed that dictator to launch an odd but sweeping religious experiment that resulted in the most disastrous consequences of extremism and marked polarisation in the Pakistan’s social strata.

About forty years on from the start of that violent experiment, it continued to become impossible to downplay or forgive the depredations that Gen Zia unleashed on the state and society. For religious intolerance and bigotry, Gen Zia would remain a wicked military leader in Pakistan’s history – for long the army ranks and files were seen infested with un-proclaimed religious divide where dangers of mutiny could easily be smelt.

While carrying on that brutal exercise in the name of Islam, Gen Ziaul Haq was one-man team; no other army General was standing by him nor the main body of the army organisation hailed his steps.

In later years, the Afghan jihad was re-located and assigned piecemeal jobs for the liberation of India-held Kashmir which again produced disastrous results because the real aim was to accommodate and better compensate the religious fanatics and criminals in the garb of Taliban – the Kashmir Cause was simply a high cry. It brought utter disrepute for Pakistan as India’s well trained diplomats’ lobby successfully got it labelled as a nation of terrorists – still the same position prevails.

The support for the Afghan & Pakistani Taliban was a scheme devised years after the Soviets had left Afghanistan. Continued flourishing of a vast network of mosques, madressahs and pseudo welfare centres promoting extremism and sectarian militancy remained prime national policy of Pakistan for which all military and civilian leaderships since 9/11 would equally be held responsible by all generations to come and history itself.

Gen Ziaul Haq, no doubt, had paved the path towards domestic explosions through extremism, terrorism and militancy, but two major political parties, PPP and the PML, could have altered the policy through strong parliamentary enactments. The parliamentarians in Pakistan are always seen coward, corrupt and compromising – the situation still prevails.

The painful decision for developing a zero tolerance approach to anti-Pakistan militants [as there was no choice then left] was taken by another military chief Gen Raheel Sharif but his first year of command, full year of 2014, was wasted by the ruling PML[N] leadership while concentrating on ‘good Taliban – bad Taliban’ mantra and launching negotiation moves.

PM Nawaz Sharif’s that hymn brought more human loss so Gen Raheel Sharif had to take one-sided decision to CRUSH all sorts of Taliban – good or bad. For year 2015 it worked well with the best rehabilitation results in Karachi but General’s last year in uniform [2016] mostly went silent because he had got secret affirmation for a better slot in Middle East militarised politics through Saudi Arabia.

As per Amnesty International Report dated 11th April 2017; Index number ACT 50/5740/2017:

“State executions in Pakistan dropped by 73 percent in 2016 as compared to the previous year, with over 360 convicts put on death row and more than 87 hanged.”

Arab-US Summit in Riyadh: In the third week of May 2017; leaders of about 50 ‘Islamic nations’ met, under the commanding supervision of US President Donald Trump and King Salman of Saudi Arabia [the first Arab Islamic American Summit], and added their collective voice to a ridiculous battle-cry: that ‘Iran was the manifestation of evil and terrorism in this world’. See the unprecedented ideological scripts discussed and adopted there:

• For the first time in recent history, the Shia-Sunni rift was ‘institutionalized as State policy’ throughout the Sunni world. A whispered bias, adopted by a few Gulf States and felt by hapless individuals in Jhang, Quetta, Karachi, Kabul, Baghdad and Riyadh, was given the institutional support and weapons with banners of ‘countering terrorism & Islamic militancy’.

• For the first time ever, the entire Sunni world was pushed to become ally with America and Israel - including Pakistan. All went against a fellow Muslim State [Iran] which never ostensibly undermined or opposed Pakistan as a nation.

• The 50 nation States in a way agreed that Iranian loudness against ISIS, Al-Qaeda and Taliban was the greatest threat to regional and religious peace; was it sense. While condemning the barbarianism of [perhaps] Sunni militant outfits, the participant countries placed the entire brunt of Islamic militancy on Iran – a country against whom there was not even an allegation of terrorism, either inside or outside its territorial boundaries.

• For the first time, America formally picked a side in centuries old sectarian rift in Islam. However, America didn’t know that they have not picked a fight with one nation alone; they had just entered the sand-grave of unknown depth because at the heart of it, even Saudi Arabia and the Middle East never opposed Iran for its political ideology.

Nearly all 50 nations Muslim World had agreed to the proposal only because they were partly bribed through Oil concessions from Saudi Arabia and its oil-rich brotherly states; Iran never deserved such unanimous contempt. Contrarily; Osama bin Laden was a Saudi and fifteen out of nineteen terrorists in the 9/11 attacks were Saudis.

In this backdrop, Saad Rasool in the daily ‘Nation’ dated 28th May 2017 refers to a well-publicized leaked email from US Foreign Secretary Hillary Clinton in which she claimed that:

“….In recent years, the Saudi government, along with Qatar, has been providing clandestine financial and logistic support to ‘the Islamic State’ [IS] and other radical Sunni groups in the region.…..more than 94 percent of deaths caused by Islamic terrorism since 2001 were perpetrated by the Islamic State, al-Qaeda and other Sunni jihadists.”

Saudi nationals were the 2nd largest group of foreign fighters in the ISIS. In fact, till such time that ISIS could write its own textbooks for schools within its territorial control, it adopted the Saudi curriculum as its own as standard.

Saad Rasool also mentioned about leaked German intelligence reports showing that “…..charities closely connected with government offices of Saudi Arabia, Qatar and Kuwait are funding mosques and schools that propagate violence and extremism in the society.”

The world media, particularly the Pakistani media teams there in Saudi Arabia to cover that special function, had noticed that Pakistani PM Nawaz Sharif was totally ignored by the American President and Saudi rulers both – rather humiliated. N Sharif was not given few seconds on stage to address to the guests or to say thanks to his hosts.

BUT within the paradigm referred before, it was irrelevant to lament the treatment meted out to Nawaz Sharif at this summit; he got what he deserved. He and his political accomplices had made Pakistan a part of perverted and perished crowds.

SHARIF’s FISCAL BACKGROUND:

See some lines from Usman Javed Account [verbatim] on media pages dated 17 October 2012:

“HISOTRY OF NAWAZ SHARIF FAMILY:

NAWAZ SHARIF’s FATHER MR SHARIF WAS BORN IN 1920 IN [village] JATI OMRA OF AMRITSER. HE WAS SON OF MUHAMMAD RAMZAN URF JANA LOHAR.

WHEN NAWAZ SHARIF WAS FINANCE MINISTER OF PUNJAB IN 1982 HE WENT TO INDIA WITH GEN ZIA…PUNJAB CM OF INDIA ASKED HIM ARE YOU SON OF JANA LOHAR I HEARD ABOUT IT. THEY WENT TO PAKISTAN AND MAKING GOOD MONEY NOW..... ZIA SAID HE IS SON OF MR SHARIF. HE [CM INDIAN PUNJAB] REPLIED SHARIF IS SON OF RAMZAN LOHAR; ISKI LOHEY KI BHETTI OTI THY HUMARY GAON MAIN.[He, Jana Lohar, had his iron kiln in our village]...

NAWAZ SHARIF AND HIS BARKING DOGS SAY...WE HAD MILLS BEFORE 1947..AND IN KHABARNAK EID SHOW WHEN HAMZA [Shahbaz] COMES ON T.V. HE ADMITTS THAT MY GRAND DAD SAID TO MY DAD [Shahbaz Sharif] AND TAYA [Nawaz Sharif] APNI OKAT MAT BHULNA TUM EK MAZDOOR KE BETEY HO..MAIN NE DUKAN KE BAHIR JHARRO MAAR KER APNI LIFE KA START LIYA THA....[My grand dad (Mian Sharif) told my dad and elder uncle that you should not forget your origin – he had taken start with sweeping the front of the shop with his own hands]

NOW, BARKING DOGS SAY WE HAD MILLS BEFORE PARTITION IN 1935 SO I HAVE QUESTION MR SHARIF BORN IN 1920 THEN HOW ITS POSSIBLE SOMEONE MAKES MILLS IN AGE OF 15 WHILE GIVING JHARO [sweeping job] AS WELL...

THEY ARE TECHNICAL CORRUPT PEOPLE.. MADE MOTORWAY AND GOT COMMISSION IN BILLIONS FROM KOREAN COMPANY: BAKER THESES ARE ON RECORD HOW HE EXPOSED NAWAZ SHARIF BEING DIRTY MONEY MAKER..MAKING FLY OVERS….

QUESTION: HOW MANY LEADERS THEY PRODUCED IN PMLN... ANSWER WILL BE NO...NEXT LEADER WILL BE HAMZA OR MARIUM....”

Now see Mohsin Raza’s account verified by Reuters available at Rediff.com dated 2nd January 2016 at 11.12 IST:

‘The Sharif group’s website claims they are worth $300 million in business and $100 million in real estate holdings.’

Referring to Shahid ur Rehman’s book titled as ‘Who Owns Pakistan’ published in 1998; during Nawaz Sharif’s first premiership in 1990, Pakistan went through a wave of privatisation and twisted a number of economic policies in the name of ‘liberalisation’. Then, most of the moves were made merely to strengthen various industrial houses, including the Sharif family’s own. The PML government had marked 115 units for privatisation, of which 67 were privatised during 1990s.

The Ittefaq Group holdings belonged to the Sharif family, which gained the most from those moves. The Ittefaq Foundries was established in [?] by Mian Sharif and his six brothers, a family of Kashmiri immigrants who settled in Punjab in the late 19th century. After migrating from Amritsar at the time of Partition [August 1947], the family settled in Lahore where Mian Sharif re-started his iron business on a limited scale.

In 1972, Zulfikar Ali Bhutto’s government nationalised several private-sector businesses, including the Sharif family’s Ittefaq Foundries but when it was given back in early 1980s, scuffles started amongst the family members. Till 1998 there were 119 offspring of the founders of Ittefaq Group who were fighting court cases on inheritance and justifiable division of assets. But how Sharifs touched the golden heights; see details.

Through 1970s, after Nawaz Sharif completed his education his father Mian Sharif pulled him in business. However, this proved a disaster.

As a second option Mian Sharif set him up with Pakistani actor Saeed Khan Rangeela to get him into acting [something which Nawaz Sharif wanted]. A few days later Saeed Khan Rangeela apologised saying that he was not fit for acting and movie industry.

Mian Sharif then arranged a cricket coach to train his son for cricket, but his physical fitness was too low for the sports.

In 1980, as a last resort he met Gen Ghulam Jilani Khan, the then Governor Punjab, to introduce Nawaz Sharif to Gen Ziaul Haq recommending him for a political post, who in turn made him Minister Excise and later elevated him to the Finance Minister of Punjab.

The day Nawaz Sharif became Finance Minister; the entire family’s earnings were few million rupees and had only one factory. From there they went on to: Ittefaq Sugar Mills was set up in 1982, Brothers Steel in 1983, Farooq Barkat (pvt) Ltd in 1985, Brother’s Textile Mills & Brothers Sugar Mills Ltd in 1986, Ittefaq Textile units 2 & 3 AND Ramzan Buksh Textiles in 1987, Khalid Siraj Textile Mills in 1988.

By the time of Gen Ziaul Haq’s fateful plane crash on 17th August 1988, Mian Sharif’s family was earning a net profit of $3 million annually [–but never declared so in TAX papers], up from a few million rupees.

When Nawaz Sharif became prime minister in 1990, the group took decision to secure project loans from the foreign banks and only working capital was taken from the nationalized commercial banks. The project financing from foreign banks was ostensibly secured against the foreign currency deposits, mostly held in be-nami accounts.

In 1992, Salman Taseer released an account of Nawaz Sharif’s corruption stating that the family had taken loans of up to Rs:12 billion. No documents to show if the same were ever paid back.

On 2nd March 1994, Khalid Siraj, a cousin of Nawaz Sharif claimed that the assets of the seven brothers were valued at Rs:21 billion and they all marched from pillar to posts in courts for their just division.

Following are the SECRET TRUTHS which are available and vastly believed in and around Mohni Road & inner city of Lahore; but not documented - so would remain allegations NOT substantiated:

Besides companies which were openly known to public, the Sharifs allegedly kept their side business going all the way through “the heroin control in Lahore” – AND along with their industry the side business also mushroomed.

During the Afghan-Soviet War in 1980s, Nawaz Sharif’s cousin Sohail Zia Butt allegedly started working under the drug baron Mirza Iqbal Beg, then Pakistan’s second biggest drug lord after Ayub Afridi. Sharifs had permanent share in his heroin business. In 1990 Suhail Zia Butt won a seat on the Islami Jamhoori Ittehad [IJI] ticket in the Punjab assembly [hats off to Sharifs].

Then Nawaz Sharif became a close associate of Mian Mansha through Mirza Iqbal Beg and through that racket became be-nami owner of many privatized government entities including Muslim Commercial Bank. Sohail Zia Butt and Nawaz Sharif then also made billions in the co-operative societies’ collapse, mainly through the National Industrial Credit and Finance Corporation [NICFC].

In 1995 when Mirza Iqbal Beg was imprisoned, Sohail Zia Butt took over his drug empire. It was at that time that he became one of the biggest drug and crime bosses in Pakistan and at one time all six underworld gangs of Lahore were working under him.

By 1995 family’s declared annual profits from industrial units had increased hundreds% from US $3 million to staggering US $400 million. This was the short version of how in mere 15 years small street thugs running gambling dens became leaders of the biggest Islamic state on earth.

What is the real state of affairs within Nawaz Sharif’s extended family; see a file from the Lahore High Court concerning ‘Sale of Ittefaq’s steel units to clear bank debts’:

[On 22nd July 2004; Justice Nasim Sikandar of the Lahore High Court [LHC] served notices on all seven Ittefaq Group of Industries’ families to explain if they supported the sale of four of its steel units for the payment of bank loans obtained by the Sharif family.

The court, on 7th July 2004, had received the report of a three-member committee that the Al-Rehmat Group of Companies from Faisalabad purchased the Ittefaq Foundries [main], the Brothers Steel at Kot Lakhpat, the Ittefaq Brothers at Shahdara and the Ilyas Enterprises on Bund Road for Rs:2.159 billion. Al-Rehmat Group had already deposited an amount of Rs:200 million and pledged to pay the balance in 15 months.

The committee was appointed by the LHC in July 1998, on the petitions of eight banks, who had advanced to the family a collective industrial loan of Rs:3.11 billion and were seeking its recovery; about 50pc of the loan was advanced by the National Bank of Pakistan. All loans were obtained between 1982 and 1988.

[The banks had filed suits for the recovery of loans with the Banking Tribunal in 1988. In March 1995 and Jan 1996, the tribunal decreed against the Sharifs who were directed to pay the loan within 15 days.]

The Sharifs challenged the decree in the LHC, which constituted a three-member committee for the disposal of assets and payment of bank loans. The committee took over the physical possession of the units after the second Nawaz Sharif government was dismissed in October 1999. Later, the Committee sold the property and before that it sold through auction the stock of raw material and finished goods for Rs:3.76 million in March 2002, and 128 vehicles for Rs:1.65 million in September 2002.

The Ittefaq Group of Industries was owned by seven families, which with the passage of time managed 16 industries in steel, textile, sugar and engineering sectors. Of them, Mian M Sharif, the father of Nawaz Sharif and Shahbaz Sharif, and Mian Merajdin were alive then [July 2004]. Mian Shafi, Mian Sirajdin, Mian Farooq Barkat, Mian Yousaf and Mian Bashir had died.

All above were the owners of the Ittefaq Foundries, the Ittefaq Brothers, the Brothers Steel, the Ilyas Enterprises and the Farooq Mills in the steel division, the Ittefaq Textile Mills, the Brothers Textile Mills, the Khalid Siraj Textile Mills, the Ramzan Bakhsh Textile Mills, the Barkat Textile Mills and the Abdul Aziz Textile Mills in the textile division.

Besides, two political sons of Mian Sharif set up an independent Sharif Group of Industries, which was running the Hudaibiya Papers Mills, the Hudaibiya Engineering Mills, the Hamza Paper and Board Mills, the Chaudhry Sugar Mills, and the Mehran Ramzan Textile Mills. All these industries came up between 1985 and 1988.

Meanwhile, the family of Mian Merajdin filed an application with the LHC, raising objections to the constitution of the committee and the sale of four steel division units.

Filed through advocate Syed Mansoor Ali Shah [the incumbent Chief Justice of the LHC] the plea challenged the setting up of the committee submitting that section 284(2) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, under which it was set up, provided alternatives for restructuring and ultimate revival of the steel units.

It was prayed that the order to the committee for the disposal amounted to liquidation of the units, which was unlawful. It submitted that the sale and winding up of the units under a company required the appointment of a court liquidator for public auction of assets through proper advertisement, and no such procedure was completed.

It also challenged the committee’s disposing of the company’s raw material and finished goods as well as vehicles on the grounds that it had no such mandate.

Another objection raised by the family was that the evaluation of the assets was got done by the committee in 1998 and the property shown was worth Rs:1.795 billion. The committee did not get a second evaluation of the property, though prices of real estate and machinery had registered a steep rise in six years.

The family questioned the sale of assets to Al-Rehmat Group of Companies on the plea that financial record of the group was not got examined by experts and shareholders.

The Merajdin family was at odds with Sharifs who distributed corporate assets shares among all others except them. The distribution of assets among the families was done in 1991 and Merajdin’s family was not given an equitable share.

The family filed a petition with the LHC in January 1997, seeking a fair distribution of the corporate assets. The petition was still pending for adjudication.]

So the fact remains that attributing all the wealth of Ittefaq Group to the Mian Sharif family alone was not correct. The mistake occurred when both Nawaz Sharif and Shahbaz Sharif’s family income and assets were not correctly furnished by them in elections of May 2013 – otherwise the noise of Panama Leaks could have gone meaningless.

The Sharif group’s website claimed they were worth $300 million in business and $100 million in real estate holdings till Mian Sharif’s death in 2005; Mian Sharif’s wife, Shamim Akhtar still owns the Jati Omra estate. Thus Nawaz Sharif, his two sons and two daughters; Shahbaz Sharif, his two wives, two sons [Hamza also having two wives] and a daughter; late Abbas Sharif, his two sons and two daughters – and with great-grand-children of many – all making around 40 living family shareholders who would inherit Jati Omra Estate some day.

The Sharifs had assets in Saudi Arabia, the UAE, London and all over UK for which details are available in next pages.

MAKING A JOKE OF GOVERNANCE:

SHARIFs are wordly known for having acute affection for their Saudi partners; who happened to be rulers too.

On 15th February 2016; Saudi Arabia launched a massive military exercise that included troops from 20 nations - the operation called Northern Thunder which involved Arab and Muslim countries and taking place in King Khalid Military City in north-eastern Saudi Arabia. It involved air, sea and land forces and the exercise continued for 18 days. In addition to Saudi Arabia, other participating nations included Jordan, Bahrain, Senegal, Oman, Qatar, United Arab Emirates, Sudan, Kuwait, the Maldives, Morocco, Pakistan, Chad, Tunisia, Comoro Islands, Djibouti, Malaysia, Egypt, Mauritania and Mauritius.

Pakistan’s Foreign Office had first out rightly rejected participation in the coalition – but as the PM Nawaz Sharif kept Saudia close to his chest – the FO was made to retract its original statement and confirmed that Pakistan was taking part, although in a very limited capacity; mainly for training and intelligence-sharing.

Considering Saudi Arabia’s announcement to send troops into Syria, Sharif family’s personal loyalty to the Saud family made the whole scenario vulnerable. Given the inherently sectarian nature of the conflict, Pakistan could have avoided sending troops to fight a foreign war on terror, especially when the IS was already trying its hardest to make space for itself in Pakistan.

Ultimately what happened; Pakistani troops joined armed forces from those 20 countries for “the largest, most important military manoeuvres” ever staged by its close ally Saudi Arabia to ramp up their counter-terrorism skills. The Foreign Office confirmed that Pakistani troops were part of the multinational military exercise being staged by Saudi Arabia – justifying that ‘Pakistan and Saudi Arabia have close defence ties going on for decades’.

Pakistan gradually and tacitly joined the said coalition. First the people were told that Pakistan was only training the Saudi forces. Then, Pakistan was only sharing intelligence with the Saudis. Finally Pakistan took part in a military exercise with aggressive designs towards Syria. Step by step, gradually but unmistakably, the country was put on a path that was leading to the quagmire of ongoing war in the Gulf.

Earlier, Saudi Arabia spearheaded a coalition of nine Arab states, started carrying out air-strikes in the neighbouring Yemen and imposing an aerial and naval blockade. The incursion was supposed to defeat the Houthis and deliver Yemen within a short period. Eleven months into the war, there was no conclusion to the hostilities in sight. Pakistan was saved unnecessary bloodletting because the government took the issue to Parliament which insisted on Pakistan’s neutrality and resolution of the dispute through peaceful means.

Later, the PML[N] government acted unwisely by taking part in the exercise without discussing the matter in the Parliament. Saudi Arabia was clear about its aims - it was not the Daesh it wanted to eliminate but the Syrian government. The aim of the Northern Thunder was not to defend Saudi territory from invasion but to get ready for sending troops under a ruse to overthrow a government which Pakistan recognised as legitimate; and from the day one.

Syria had already warned that Saudi or other foreign troops entering the country would “return home in wooden coffins”. Iran, being an ally of Syria, had taken a similar stand.

By joining the Northern Thunder Pakistan sent a wrong message that it agreed with the Saudi policy in the Gulf. Good relations with all Muslim countries should have been a cornerstone of Pakistan’s foreign policy - not to send troops to fight other countries’ wars. Even when Pakistan was badly in need of US weapons and financial support in the early years of its history, it had refused to send even a token military unit to the Korean War despite the US pressure. Why not the similar stand in so volatile Gulf situation then?

SHARIFs’ useless foreign trips – share wastage of poor peoples’ money: On 17th February 2016; Pakistan’s Foreign Ministry in a report placed before the National Assembly told that Rs:688.276 million were spent on PM Nawaz Sharif’s 65 state visits to other countries in two and half years. He visited United Kingdom 15 times, Saudi Arabia five times and the United States three times. Foreign Ministry added that 631 people had accompanied the premier in his visits. MoFA also declared in the report that in a visit to France Rs:32.249 million were spent by the government under the head ‘miscellaneous – petty expenditure’.

In two and a half years spread over about one thousand days, PM Nawaz Sharif spent nearly 200 days away from the country. These did not include his private but regular visits to Saudi Arabia during Ramadhan and his private trips to UK. The spending of the above hefty sums constituted a wasteful drain on national exchequer in Pakistan which was then facing acute revenue crunch.

The government never clarified it to the people that what Pakistan got out of so many trips by its Prime Minister. With no explanation offered for 17 visits to the United Kingdom, this had given rise to speculations of all sorts – especially pointing out that the PM remained busy in his own business developmental activities.

The frequency of the visits speaks out about Sharif’s priorities at home. He was criticised most for not giving importance to the Parliament - he attended only 35 sittings of the House which elected him to office. The record of his presence in the Senate which represents the federation was even more dismal. His long absence encouraged Cabinet Members and PML[N] MNAs to frequently absent themselves from the House, causing a lack of quorum and leading to inordinate delay in crucial legislation.

The PM Nawaz Sharif failed to fulfil the constitutional requirement of holding the CCI meeting for more than a year while it ought to be convened every three months. The excuse was that the PM was too busy. PM Sharif had no time to visit any site of mass casualty or crime scene of terrorist attack; one could see the list of events through those years.

However, one cabinet member Pervaiz Rashid kept on appearing on media channels sometimes thrice a day to speak about PM’s so called [zero] achievements.

SHARIF’s early journey in Politics: Referring to daily ‘Dawn’ dated 14th April 2016; Nawaz Sharif represented the new generation when he was picked up by Gen Ziaul Haq on the recommendations of the then military Governor of Punjab named Gen Jilani in the early ’80s. Nawaz Sharif was one of the four contenders for the IJI’s candidate for prime minister’s slot after 1990’s elections. The other three included:

Ghulam Mustafa Jatoi; who believed that since he was the interim prime minister after Benazir Bhutto’s exit, perhaps he could just continue on in the same role for the sake of simplicity.

Ijaz ul Haq; who considered himself the right heir to his father Gen Ziaul Haq’s legacy, otherwise having zero standing in politics.

Mohammad Khan Junejo: who believed that the party owed him the slot because it had been unlawfully taken from him in May 1988. He had decided to withdraw his challenge to Gen Zia’s dismissal of his government in the Supreme Court under the assurance that he would be IJI’s nominee PM in the next elections.

What happened practically; Junejo passed his legacy to Hamid Nasir Chattha, who was simply considered worth his own seat in the Parliament after little negotiations with Nawaz Sharif. Ijaz ul Haq always considered himself lucky when got an invitation to a TV talk show, let alone being in a position to lead a political party. And Mr Jatoi passed away quietly in 2009, leaving behind little more than a regretful obituary.

For quarter of a century since that 1990’s elections, no challenger had been able to emerge from within the PML to Nawaz Sharif’s authority. Most probably, behind that spectacular rise to power there was a new ingredient - the unique relationship with the country’s ruling business elites that Nawaz Sharif was able to build while his rivals could not.

However, NAWAZ SHARIF behaved odd since his early days on hard fields of politics. Referring to Alex Hannaford’s treat titled as Love and rockets: true confessions of a female war reporter appeared in UK’s daily ‘the Telegraph’ dated 16th April 2016:

Kim Barker, a foreign correspondent for the Chicago Tribune covering Afghanistan and Pakistan, met with PML[N]’s Chief Nawaz Sharif for a 15-minute interview in 2008. Nawaz Sharif [NS] apparently developed liking for the young, single reporter.

[When 9/11 happened, she (Kim Barker) volunteered for a posting to the Middle East. ….. she knocked on the door of the foreign editor (of the Chicago Tribune) and explained: “I have no kids and no husband, so I’m expendable.”]

NS personally called her to say how much he liked the piece she wrote [despite her mentioning his hair plugs], and invited her to join him on the campaign trail. Barker met Sharif, known as the ‘Tiger of Punjab’, several times in the following months, and each time she felt increasingly upset and uncomfortable: “….he [NS] insisted on buying her an iPhone and had his security chief keep track of her whereabouts”.

The most hilarious beginning of this romantic incident remained:

*“First, according to Barker, he attempted, unsuccessfully, to set her up on a date with the then-Prime Minister and widower of Benazir Bhutto, Asif Ali Zardari (he could be her ‘special friend’, Sharif said).

When that failed, Sharif then ‘pounced’.

“I would like to be your friend,” he (NS) told her.

But Barker cut him off: “No. Absolutely not. Not going to happen.”

“I know, I’m not as tall as you’d like,” …..Sharif replied.

“I’m fat, and I’m old. But I would still like to be your friend.”

Barker made her excuses and left.”*

The above cited narrative was one of many amusing yet unnerving anecdotes in Kim Barker’s memoir ‘The Taliban Shuffle’. When the book was published in 2011, the PML[N]’s jan-nisars were not pleased; a petition was filed in the Lahore High Court [LHC] seeking an enquiry into her “false allegations against NS” but rest of the community appreciated the truthful book – later optioned by Hollywood and turned into the film “Whiskey Tango Foxtrot”.

The truth about the cultural taboos in the South Western Asian region is well described and displayed in both the above mentioned book and the film. Barker successfully described that:

“…..how women journalists working in Islamic countries often feel they are being treated as a ‘third gender’; that they are able to communicate with men in authority in a way local women can’t; and get access to other women in a way foreign male journalists can’t. It’s much harder to get women to trust you if you’re a foreign man than if you’re a foreign woman.”

Kim Barker, while she commenting on film Whiskey Tango Foxtrot made on her book, said that:

“For years, whenever people asked how foreign women were treated in Afghanistan, I always said better than in Pakistan.

We had an easier time than the male reporters. We could interview women and we got bizarre access to….even the conservative mullahs, who seemed secretly charmed by the idea of Western women running around. We were the third sex, immune to the local rules for women and entitled to a more exclusive status than Western men.“

Robert Carlock, who wrote Whiskey Tango Foxtrot, commented on the change in the production notes saying:

“Pakistan is a big onion. You can peel it forever; it is endlessly complicated. And we felt that having the film constantly shuffling between Islamabad and Kabul would be too disorienting.”

…..[Kim] Barker also had some deeply uncomfortable encounters. Namely:

“Barker’s relationship with Ali Massoud Sadiq [played by Alfred Molina in the film], who appeared to be playing a character loosely based on Pakistani Prime Minister Nawaz Sharif, seems comically outrageous,”

Rosalyn Ransaw’s essay dated 7th March 2016 in screenprism.com is referred.

SHARIF’s ‘Buying Judges’ game is notoriously known in the wholesome pages of contemporary history. In June 2017; Mian Tariq Shafi appeared in SC’s nominated JIT to tell how he and Nawaz Sharf and Shahbaz etc managed to get CLEAN CHIT through buying of judges.

He [Tariq Shafi] was co-accused with PM, CM & other family members in THREE FIA cases. In 1995, three cases, FIRs no: 2,3 & 4/95 were registered in [SIU] FIA for certain dubious imports of raw material & scrap for ITTEFAQ FOUNDRIES. Cases were sent to the Special Banking Court for onward trial.

PM Nawaz Sharif came in power again in 1997. In January 1998, FIA was ORDERED to send police files to Special Public Prosecutor [Bhatti Chambers LHR]. The Sharifs filed a petition in the said court u/s 249-A CrPC for acquittal.

[On 26th May 1998, all the accused were ACQUITTED in the said three cases by Justice (rtd) Khalid Paul Khwaja.

The order sheets [copies of 114/97 & 115/97 are still available with Inam R Sehri] are worth enjoying; both containing 16/17 pages with the same paragraphs except first two pages of description; no contest from the STATE and HBL Empress Br LHR whose loans were at stake….and then NO APPEALS WHATSOEVER.]

That’s how the influential rulers MANAGE justice for them in Pakistan.

 

 

 

 

ANOTHER FORGOTTEN PAGE OF HISTORY:

In 1970 general elections, ZA Bhutto got 6148923 votes [18.6%] and won 81 seats out of 300 National Assembly’s total seats. Sh Mujeeb ur Rehman got 12937162 votes [39.2%] and won 160 seats. Bhutto, in collusion with Gen Yahya Khan, refused to allow Sh Mujeeb to form the government and raised the slogan ‘Udhar Tum Idhar Hum’. Pakistan went divided – but still the Bhutto zinda hai [Bhutto is alive].

Thank God that Namrood, Firaun & Abu Jehal were not in Peoples Party otherwise they would have been alive today.


	

Scenario 202

PANAMA LEAKS - VOLCANO ERUPTS:

[The information given below is authentic as most of the material has been taken from ICIJ’s official sources]

Panama Papers Leaks exposed the offshore holdings of 12 then serving and former world leaders and revealed details of the hidden financial dealings of 128 more politicians and public officials around the world.

Release of 11.5 million documents showed how a global industry of law firms and big banks sells financial secrecy to politicians, fraudsters and drug traffickers as well as billionaires, celebrities and sports stars. A year-long investigation by the International Consortium of Investigative Journalists [ICIJ], German newspaper Süddeutsche Zeitung and more than 100 other news organizations contributed towards those massive leaks which shocked the whole humanity over the globe.

Panama’s leaked records — reviewed by a team of more than 370 journalists from 76 countries — came from a little-known but powerful law firm based in Panama, Mossack Fonseca [MF], that kept branches in Hong Kong, Miami, Zurich and more than 35 other places world over.

[MF still holds that having an offshore company isn’t illegal. For some international business transactions, it’s a logical choice.]

MOSSACK FONSECA OF PANAMA:

Mossack Fonseca [MF] appeared as the world’s top creators of shell companies, corporate structures used to hide ownership of assets. The law firm’s leaked internal files contained information on 214,488 offshore entities connected to people in more than 200 countries and territories. ICIJ released the full list of companies and people linked to them in May - the formal announcement had been made on 3rd April 2016.

The data included emails, financial spreadsheets, passports and corporate records revealing the secret owners of bank accounts of beneficial directors and companies in 21 offshore jurisdictions, from Nevada to Singapore to the British Virgin Islands [BVI].

Panama files exposed offshore companies controlled by the prime minister of Iceland, the king of Saudi Arabia and the children of the president of Azerbaijan and the prime minister of Pakistan and his family. It included 33 people and companies blacklisted by the US government because of evidence that they’d contacts with Mexican drug lords and certain terrorist organizations as per record of FBI or CIA.

Mossack Fonseca’s fingers were in Africa’s diamond trade, the international art market and other businesses that thrive on secrecy. The firm serviced enough Middle East royalty to fill a palace; it helped two kings, Mohammed VI of Morocco and King Salman of Saudi Arabia - often took them to the sea on luxury yachts.

In Iceland, the leaked files showed how Prime Minister Sigmundur David Gunnlaugsson and his wife secretly owned an offshore firm that held millions of dollars in Icelandic bank bonds during that country’s financial crisis – the facts were not accepted by their citizen.

Ironically, some named persons were labelled so for having relations with [allegedly] rogue nations like North Korea and Iran; one of those companies supplied fuel for the aircraft that the Syrian government had allegedly used during its recent war.

Some files revealed offshore companies linked to the family of China’s top leader, Xi Jinping. Here the partisanship of the Panama Leaks organizers became evident because China’s Xi Jinping was known having vowed to fight ‘armies of corruption’; similarly the Ukrainian President Petro Poroshenko had also positioned himself as a reformer in a country shaken by corruption scandals.

The files also contained new details of offshore dealings by the late father of British Prime Minister David Cameron.

Panama papers’ leaked data covered nearly 40 years, from 1977 till ending 2015 — providing a day-to-day, decade-by-decade look at how dark money used to flow through the global financial system, breeding crime and stripping national treasuries of tax revenues. However, most of the services the offshore industry provides were legal if used by the law abiding entities.

Panama Leaks successfully showed that banks, law firms and other offshore players often failed to follow legal requirements that they made sure their clients were not involved in criminal enterprises, tax dodging or political corruption. The leaked documents made it clear that major banks were big drivers behind the creation of hard-to-trace companies in the British Virgin Islands [BVI] and Panama etc.

Panama files listed nearly 15,600 paper companies that banks set up for clients who wanted keep their finances under wraps, including thousands created by international giants like UBS and HSBC. The records revealed a pattern of covert manoeuvres by banks, companies and individuals.

The files of Panama Leaks included names of 29 billionaires featured in Forbes Magazine’s list of the world’s 500 richest people and movie star Jackie Chan, who had at least six companies managed through the MF law firm; also some drug kingpins, tax evaders and at least one jailed sex offender who had signed papers for an offshore company while he was serving his prison sentence in New Jersey USA.

Panama Leaks contained files about major scandals ranging from England’s most infamous gold tycoon to the bribery allegations convulsing FIFA, the body that rules international football. It revealed that the law firm of Juan Pedro Damiani, a member of FIFA’s ethics committee, had business relationships with three men who were indicted in the FIFA scandal; well known to the world.

The world’s best soccer player, Lionel Messi, was also found in the documents; Messi and his father were owners of a Panama company: Mega Star Enterprises Inc. ICIJ’s report also held that:

“Mossack Fonseca [MF] worked aggressively to protect its clients’ secrets. In Nevada [USA], the law firm tried to shield itself and its clients from the fallout from a legal action in US District Court by removing paper records from its Las Vegas branch and having its tech gurus wipe electronic records from phones and computers.

The leaked files show the firm regularly offered to backdate documents to help its clients gain advantage in their financial affairs.”

However; in a written response to questions from ICIJ and its media partners, the firm [MF] said:

“….it does not foster or promote illegal acts. Your allegations that we provide shareholders with structures supposedly designed to hide the identity of the real owners are completely unsupported and false – [but] the backdating of documents is a well-founded and accepted practice that is common in our industry and its aim is not to cover up or hide unlawful acts.”

The law firm’s co-founder, Ramón Fonseca, said in an interview on Panamanian television that ‘the firm has no responsibility for what clients do with the offshore companies that the firm sells.’ He compared the firm to a “car factory whose liability ends once the car is produced”. Blaming Mossack Fonseca for what people do with their companies would be like blaming a carmaker “if the car was used in a robbery.”

Mossack Fonseca came under growing scrutiny as governments obtained partial leaks of the firm’s files and authorities in Germany and Brazil started probing its practices. In February 2015, German law-enforcement agencies launched a series of raids targeting one of the country’s biggest bank, Commerzbank, in tax-fraud investigations.

In January 2016; in Brazil, the MF became target in a bribery and money laundering investigation dubbed “Operation Car Wash” which led to criminal charges against leading politicians and an investigation of popular former president Luiz Inacio Lula da Silva. The scandal threatened to unseat the incumbent President Dilma Rousseff also. However, MF denied any wrongdoing in Brazil.

In the largest media collaboration ever undertaken, journalists working in more than 25 languages dug into MF’s inner workings and traced the secret dealings of MF’s customers around the world. They shared information and hunted down leads generated by the leaked files using corporate filings, property records, financial disclosures, court documents and interviews with money laundering experts, white collar crime specialists and law-enforcement officials.

Reporters at Germany’s Süddeutsche Zeitung obtained millions of records from a confidential source and shared them with ICIJ and other media partners. The news outlets involved in the collaboration did not pay for the documents.

Before Süddeutsche Zeitung obtained the leak, German tax authorities bought a smaller set of MF documents from a source, a move that triggered raids in Germany in early 2015; the same files were first offered to tax authorities in the United Kingdom, the United States and other countries but they ignored the bid. The ICIJ report concluded that:

“The story of Mossack Fonseca [MF] is, in many ways, the story of the offshore system itself.”

INVESTIGATIONS DONE BY ICIJ:

The First Published Report dated 3rd April 2016 - by The International Consortium of Investigative Journalists [ICIJ]

• Files reveal the offshore holdings of 140 politicians and public officials from around the world.

• Current and former world leaders in the data include the prime minister of Iceland, the president of Ukraine, and the king of Saudi Arabia including the monarch prince.

• More than 214,000 offshore entities appear in the leak, connected to people in more than 200 countries and territories.

• Major banks have driven the creation of hard-to-trace companies in offshore havens.

The leaks also provided details of the hidden financial dealings of 128 more politicians and public officials around the world. The files exposed offshore companies controlled by the prime minister of Iceland, the king of Saudi Arabia and the children of the president of Azerbaijan and the prime minister of Pakistan.

They also included at least 33 people and companies blacklisted by the US government because that they’d been involved in business with Mexican drug lords, Alleged terrorist organizations and countries like North Korea and Iran. The files also contained new details of offshore dealings by the late father of the then British Prime Minister David Cameron; was a trivial matter though.

The records showed offshore companies also linked to Russian leader Putin; allegedly its network moving money in transactions as large as $200 million at a time. Kremlin’s high officials, however, went public on 28th March 2016 with charges that ICIJ and its media partners were preparing a misleading ‘information attack on Putin’ and people close to him.

Until recently, Mossack Fonseca largely operated in shadows; it came under growing scrutiny as governments obtained partial leaks of the firm’s files and authorities in Germany and Brazil began probing its practices; not known to the world till then.

In January 2016, Brazilian prosecutors labelled Mossack Fonseca as a “big money launderer”. Mossack Fonseca denied any wrongdoing in Brazil; for others MF went silent.

[The offshore system relies on a sprawling global industry of bankers, lawyers, accountants and these go-betweens who work together to protect their clients’ secrets. These secrecy experts use anonymous companies, trusts and other paper entities to create complex structures that can be used to disguise the origins of dirty money, high valued assets – and the world over.]

Mossack Fonseca told ICIJ that it follows “both the letter and spirit of the law. Because we do, we have not once in nearly 40 years of operation been charged with criminal wrong-doing.” The men who founded the firm decades ago — and continue today as its main partners — are well-known figures in Panamanian society and politics.

From its base in Panama, one of the world’s top financial secrecy zones, Mossack Fonseca seeded anonymous companies in Panama, the British Virgin Islands and other financial havens but worked closely with big banks and big law firms in places like Netherlands, Mexico, the United States and Switzerland, helping clients move money or slash their tax bills in billions of dollars.

An ICIJ analysis of the leaked files found that more than 500 banks, their subsidiaries and branches worked with Mossack Fonseca since the 1970s to help clients manage offshore companies. UBS set up more than 1,100 offshore companies through Mossack Fonseca. HSBC and its affiliates created more than 2,300.

In all, the files indicate Mossack Fonseca worked with more than 14,000 banks, law firms, company incorporators and other middlemen to set up companies, foundations and trusts for customers. The middlemen remained its true clients, not the eventual customers as these middlemen provided additional layers of oversight for reviewing new customers. However, they often “exceeded the existing rules and standards to which we and others are bound.”

An ICIJ analysis of the Mossack Fonseca files identified 61 family members and associates of prime ministers, presidents or kings. The records show, for example, that the family of Azerbaijan President Ilham Aliyev used foundations and companies in Panama to hold secret stakes in gold mines and London real estate.

The children of Pakistani Prime Minister Nawaz Sharif also owned London real estate through companies created by Mossack Fonseca, the law firm’s records showed.

Family members of at least eight current or former members of China’s Politburo Standing Committee, the country’s main ruling body, have offshore companies arranged though Mossack Fonseca. They included President Xi’s brother-in-law, who set up two British Virgin Islands companies in 2009.

The list of world leaders who used Mossack Fonseca to set up offshore entities also included the current president of Argentina, Mauricio Macri and representatives of Ukrainian leader Petro Poroshenko etc.

[….for above extracts, a Report by The Center for Public Integrity (910 17th Street, NW Suite 700, Washington, DC 20006 USA) is referred]

In short: ‘Panama Leaks’ was the most extensive data journalism leaked in the history of news, over 11.5 million documents and 2.6 Terabytes of data were leaked from the databases of Mossack Fonseca, the world’s fourth largest offshore law firm. The data showed how the world’s richest celebrities, politicians, rulers, estate tycoons and other businessmen use offshore havens to avoid taxation.

Technically, there’s nothing illegal about using offshore firms but serious questions were raised regarding the ethics of using these companies for tax evasion – most transactions were to avoid taxes. In various markets, including the USA, setting up an offshore firm for the sole purpose of evading tax is illegal.

This massive leak of documents exposed the offshore holdings of 12 [then] current and former world leaders and revealed how associates of Russian President Vladimir Putin secretly shuffled as much as $2 billion through banks and shadow companies. Some highlights from the Panama Papers reflected that along with Pakistani notables – mainly Sharifs, the others were:

• Ayad Allawi, ex-interim prime minister and former vice-president of Iraq; Petro Poroshenko, president of Ukraine; Alaa Mubarak, son of Egypt’s former president; and the current prime minister of Iceland, Sigmundur Davíð Gunnlaugsson.

• Individuals who were sanctioned for supporting oppressive regimes and dictatorships around the world had their accounts with the said company – MF.

• A leaked memo from Mossack Fonseca partner said: “Ninety-five per cent of our work coincidentally consists in selling vehicles to avoid taxes.”

Former UK Prime Minister David Cameron had to face embarrassment when it emerged that his late father’s offshore investment fund Blairmore Holdings Inc. did not pay any UK taxes on its profits. In addition, Britain’s Chancellor of the Exchequer Philip Hammond told in the parliament in November 2016 that 22 people were under investigation for tax evasion and 43 high net-worth individuals were “under examination”.

In Malta, Prime Minister Joseph Muscat remained under increasing pressure after the EU committee described a case involving his cabinet minister, Konrad Mizzi, as “textbook case of money laundering”.

In Hong Kong, the Financial Services and Treasury Bureau has been looking to impose anti-money laundering laws on non-financial businesses and required private companies to disclose their true owners.

And in Panama itself, the country thrust into the global spotlight as the tax haven of choice for those looking to stash their wealth, including the two owners of Mossack Fonseca were charged with money laundering and destroying evidence of a bribery scandal. Though the Law Firm denied all allegations but over 370 journalists from 100 news organizations had spent one year on verifying the said documents.

PAKISTAN ALSO FIGURED:

The Panama Papers, a global investigation into the sprawling, secretive industry of offshore that the world’s rich and powerful, used to hide assets and skirt rules by setting up front companies in far-flung jurisdictions, jolted the whole world. Pakistan was no exception; the leaks revealed a lot about politicians and notables in Pakistan.

Umar Cheema, a journalist working with daily ‘The News International’ and a member of the ICIJ had partnered with more than 100 media organisations from 76 countries to review 11.5 million secret files. A test instalment of the material was first leaked [sold] to Süddeutsche Zeitung, revealed names of Pakistanis with offshore holdings; Cheema’s report published in the above newspaper on 4th April 2016 is referred.

The findings were based on year-long investigations into the otherwise best-kept secrets of the world, through the ICIJ and the German newspaper Süddeutsche Zeitung.

A treasure trove of leaked documents puffed the lid off the faces behind offshore companies operating in multi-layered secrecy, revealing names throughout the world, including Benazir Bhutto, Javed Pasha, Saifullahs, Hashwanis, Lakhanis, relatives of Shahbaz, Chaudhrys and Rehman Malik; along with Bollywood stars Amitabh & Aishwariya family of Indian sub-continent.

The Pakistani names found in the secret files ranged from those of Prime Minister Nawaz Sharif’s family to Punjab Chief Minister Shahbaz Sharif’s relatives; from Benazir Bhutto to Javed Pasha; from Senator Rehman Malik to Senator Osman Saifullah’s family; and from Waseem Gulzar [a relative of the Chaudhrys of Gujrat] to Zain Sukhera, who was co-accused with former Prime Minister Yusuf Raza Gilani’s son in the Hajj scandal.

As per documents shared by the International Consortium of Investigative Journalists [ICIJ], Pakistan’s two-time Prime Minister and Chairperson of Pakistan People’s Party [PPP] Benazir Bhutto was also among the clients of Mossack Fonseca [MF] along with her close aide Senator Rehman Malik and nephew Hassan Ali Jaffery.

Panama Leaks said that Bhutto and her partners paid huge bribes to the then Iraqi government - led by President Saddam Hussain - in year 2000 to win oil contracts for their Sharjah based company Petroline FZC. B Bhutto later established a company named Petroline International in British Virgin Islands [BVI] in 2001 – however, it was refused to be accepted as client by the MF for being politically sensitive.

Petroline International Inc. had issued Certificate no:1 for 17,000 shares with face value of $1.00 each on 7th September 2001 in the name of Benazir Bhutto; the authorised capital of the firm was $50,000.00.

In 2005, an investigation into United Nation’s oil-for-food program in Iraq revealed that Bhutto’s firm paid US$ 2 million to President Saddam Hussain and in return they earned oil contracts of worth US$115-145 million. The probe was led by former head of US Federal Reserves Paul Volker – the report helped CIA & Rehman Malik to come closer.

Next year [2006] Pakistan’s National Accountability Bureau [NAB] also claimed that Petroline FZC was owned by Benazir Bhutto but she and her party, PPP, strongly dismissed the charges and called it political conspiracy against them – a routine game in Pakistan.

Businessmen featured in the record included from hotel tycoon Sadruddin Hashwani to real estate czar Malik Riaz Hussain’s son; from the Hussain Dawood family to the Abdullah family of Sapphire Textiles, Gul Muhammad Tabba of Lucky Textiles as well as Shahid Nazir of Masood Textiles and from Zulfiqar Ali Lakhani to Zulfiqar Paracha.

Members from the bar and the bench were also spotted in the documents including one serving judge of the Lahore High Court, Justice Farrukh Irfan; and one retired judge, Malik Qayyum. Owner of Hilton Pharma, Shehbaz Yasin Malik opened the company for a Swiss bank account. Chairman ABM Group of Companies Azam Sultan, Pizza Hut owner Aqeel Hussain and Chairman Soorty Enterprise Abdul Rashid Soorty were also identified along with the family members.

Over 200 Pakistanis were identified and the counting kept continued. The whole Panama Leaks data covered nearly 40 years from 1977 through the end of 2015 but Pakistanis started figuring in the record from 1990 onward.

While a majority of Pakistanis figuring in the documents were businessmen, the politico-business Saifullah family of Lakki Marwat stays on top with a record number of 34 offshore companies in the British Virgin Islands [BVIs] and Seychelles owned by Senator Osman Saifullah, Anwar Saifullah, Salim Saifullah, Humayun Saifullah, Dr Iqbal Saifullah, Javed Saifullah and Jehangir Saifullah. Bank accounts in Hong Kong, Singapore, Ireland and property in UK were owned by these companies.

Incidentally, Senator Osman Saifullah was a member of the Tax Reform Commission set up by the government to check revenue leakage, broaden the revenue base and improve tax administration; Pakistan is ISLAMIC Republic – hurray.

Javed Pasha, a close friend of Asif Ali Zardari, was found linked with five companies; the remaining shareholders in those companies were prominent businessmen of Indian origin – Zardari always cursed Sharifs on the same account of ‘Special Relations with India’ .

Examination of data indicated that some were beginners in this secret world, others incorporated the companies but left them dormant ending at dissolutions whereas many kept them active using them for the intended purposes – all depending upon circumstances.

The record of ownership varied as it ranged from emails to spreadsheets, passports, signatures of shareholders, bank accounts details, property documents, resolution of directors and contact details in Pakistan and abroad. Most of the services the offshore industry provided were legal in their respective jurisdictions like British Virgin Islands, Channel Islands, The Bahamas, Republic of Panama, Republic of Seychelles etc.

What remains to be seen in terms of Pakistani individuals was the purpose of using tax havens and whether or not they had declared their businesses in their tax declarations. The overall data indicated that many of the owners of such companies from different parts of the world were also involved in drug trafficking, robberies and cheating.

Dawood Ibrahim, Junaid Iqbal Memon, Nadiya Javed Malik, Hajra Iqbal Memon and their associates also owned offshore companies; their sources of funding with the British Virgin Islands were in fact the funds generated ‘through borrowing / loan’ from banks and DFIs got subsequently eaten up through political bargains.

Pakistani politicians gained attention due to their public profile but majority of names found in the leaked record of offshore companies were of experienced businessmen. Prominent among them were tycoons of the hotel industry, textile sector, real estate, pharmaceutical industry, bankers and media owners.

Zulfiqar Lakhani of the Lakson group, CEO of three companies [Colgate Palmolive, Tetley Clover and Clover Pakistan] was identified as a secret beneficial owner of a company registered in the British Virgin Islands - Lezayre Ltd since 2000. Proxy shareholders were Benson Equities Inc., Brock Nominees Limited and Tenby Nominees Limited.

Information shared only on 4th December 2015 with BVI identified him as the beneficial owner having businesses in Pakistan. Activities carried out through the company have been described as ‘asset holding - bankable asset’. Source of wealth was mentioned as ‘proceed of inheritance and business earning, CEO of Colgate Palmolive (Pakistan) Ltd and Tetley (Pakistan) Ltd.’

Founder of the Hashoo Group, Sadruddin Hashwani, was a secret beneficial owner along with his son, Murtaza, of the First Global Investments Holdings Limited registered in BVI running through corporate proxies. The shareholders were North Atlantic Services Ltd and Rushlake Hotels (USA) Inc, registered in Florida, yet another tax haven. Hashoo company’s activities were described as investment and asset holding mainly in Pakistan, Nigeria, USA and UAE.

First Global also owned shares of Orient Petroleum Inc and a mortgage deal of 30 million pounds was signed with Standard Bank PLC, for the Orient. Another company, Celtico Capital Management, was owned by Murtaza Hashwani.

[The version of the Hashoo Group: First Global is only a holding Company of Orient Petroleum International Inc, [OPII], whereas OPII had a registered branch in Pakistan as allowed by Authorities and had fully complied the requirements of the Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Resources, SECP, BOI, FBR under the rules and regulations. First Global has been meeting all the regulatory requirements as required by law in all jurisdictions without hiding any information or details whatsoever].
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